Special Safer and Stronger Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date Thursday 13 November 2014
Time 10.00 am
Venue County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority

Headquarters, Belmont Business Park, DH1 1TW

Business
Part A

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. Members
of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's agreement.

Apologies for Absence

Substitute Members

Declarations of Interest, if any

Any items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties

Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) 2015/16 to 2017/18 - Consultation:
(Pages 1 - 36)

(i) Report of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer, County Durham and
Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority.

(i) Presentation by the Deputy Chief Fire Officer, County Durham and
Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority

(i)  Tour of the County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority
Headquarters.

O 0=

6. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, is of
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration

Colette Longbottom
Head of Legal and Democratic Services



County Hall
Durham
5 November 2014

To: The Members of the Safer and Stronger Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Councillor D Boyes (Chairman)
Councillor T Nearney (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors J Armstrong, J Charlton, P Conway, J Cordon, S Forster, J Gray,
D Hall, C Hampson, B Harrison, M Hodgson, G Holland, J Maitland, N Martin,
J Measor, K Shaw, W Stelling, P Stradling, J Turnbull and C Wilson
Co-opted Members: Mr A J Cooke and Mr J Welch

Co-opted Employees/Officers: S Errington and Chief Superintendent G Hall

Contact: Martin Tindle Tel: 03000 269 713




Agenda Item 5

Safer and Stronger Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Durham E{E
13 November 2014 County Council &3 E

Integrated Risk Management Plan
(IRMP) 2015/16 to 2017/18
Consultation

Report of Stuart Errington, Deputy Chief Fire Officer, County
Durham & Darlington Fire & Rescue Authority

Purpose of the Report

1. To provide the Safer Stronger Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee with background to the Fire Authority’s IRMP consultation for
2015/16 — 2017/18. The Committee will be provided with a presentation
setting out details of the consultation and key issues for the Fire Authority
going forward.

Background

2. The Fire and Rescue Service National Framework for England
(published in July 2012 by the Department of Communities and local
Government) places a statutory responsibility on all Fire and Rescue
Authorities to produce an IRMP.

3. The IRMP must be publicly available (currently on the County Durham
and Darlington Fire and Rescue Service website, attached at Appendix
2) and cover at least a three year timescale. The Framework requires
that an IRMP must also:

= Be regularly reviewed and reflect up to date risk information and
evaluation of the outcomes of delivering our service;

= Identify and assess all foreseeable fire and rescue related risks
that could affect the community;

= Have regard to existing analyses of risk to communities completed
by partners such as Local and Regional Resilience Forums;

= Reflect effective consultation during its development and at all
review stages with representatives of all sections of the
community and those who have a stake in the local area;

= Demonstrate how prevention, protection and response activities
will be best used to reduce the impact of risk on communities in a
cost effective way;

» Provide details of how Fire and Rescue Authorities deliver their
objectives and meet the needs of communities through working
with partners.

4. The IRMP will be equality impact assessed to ensure County Durham

and Darlington Fire and Rescue Service’s activities and proposals satisfy
the requirements of equality legislation.

Page 1



5. The Fire Authority has a statutory duty to consult on the contents of its
IRMP. The views of all relevant stakeholders will be considered by the
Authority before it finalises the IRMP for the three year period. .

0. The consultation on the IRMP will include Area Action Partnerships,
Parish and Town Councils, Service Personnel and Social Media as in
previous years. The Authority is also holding a number of specific
consultation events in the areas most impacted by the potential changes.

7. The consultation period commenced on 28 July and ends on 01
December 2014.

The 2015/16 — 2017/18 IRMP

8. The format and content of the IRMP reflects the requirements of the Fire
and Rescue Service National Framework and is focused on the public as
the main recipient of the information it contains. This IRMP consultation
covers the Authority’s second phase of Service Transformation.

9. The IRMP will set out how the Authority will implement a number of cost
saving measures whilst mininimsing the impact on the local
communities, including:

e Sharing fire stations with our partners;

¢ Responding to specific medical emergencies with trained
firefighters in support of the North East Ambulance Service;

e Changing the crewing arrangements for the Arial Ladder Platform
at Darlington,;

e Reviewing the number of emergency response fire officers we
employ;

¢ Reviewing the staffing model at Spennymoor Fire Station.

FUTURE IRMP’s

10.  In addition to setting out the options covering the period 2015/16 —
2017/18 the Authority will also publish an annual action plan providing
details of the individual options being taken forward each year throughout
the three year period.

Recommendations
11. Members are requested to
(i) Consider and note the content of the IRMP consultation for

2015/16 — 2017/18which will be presented at the meeting.
(i) Provide feedback on the IRMP for 2015/16 — 2017/18.

Contact: Michael Pearson, Organisational Development,
County Durham & Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority
Tel: 0191 375 5661 E-mail: mpearson@ddfire.qov.uk

Page 2



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance — None

Staffing — None

Risk - None

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty — None

Accommodation - None

Crime and Disorder — None

Human Rights — None

Consultation — Outcomes from this report and presentation will raise Members
awareness of the Fire Authority’s consultation on its Integrated Risk
Management Plan.

Procurement — None

Disability Issues — None

Legal Implications — None

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Appendix 2

County Durham and Darlington

Safest People, Safest Places Fire and Rescue Authority

Three year strategic plan
2015/16 - 2017/18

Consultation document

-

Our three year strategic plan highlights the key risks and challenges
we face within County Durham and Darlington and how we intand to
align our resources to those risks over the next three years



Safest People, Safest Places

Contents

Welcome and foreword

Keeping communities safe

Our priorities

Identifying and assessing risks

The risks we face

Risks in specific areas

Addressing the risks — prevention, protection and response

Performance

Assurance
Operational assurance
Financial and governance assurance

Finance

The financial challenge

Efficiency

How the Fire Authority is funded
Our medium term financial plan
Estates improvement programme

Consultation

02 Three Year Strategic Plan
Page 6

16

22
22
22

23
23
23
24
25
26

27



County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Welcome
and foreword

Welcome to the consultation document on our latest three year strategic
plan which explains how we serve the people of County Durham and the
Borough of Darlington, sets out the key risks and challenges we face and
how we intend to allocate our resources to meet those risks.

Reductions in central government funding over the past four years have Susan Johnson

meant we have had to find over £3.5m of savings from our budget since Chief Executive

2010. Achieving these savings has meant making significant changes to County Durham and Darlington
how we deliver our service. However, so far, we have been able to do Fire and Rescue Authority

this without increasing risk in local communities.

Looking ahead, the next three years are likely to be even more
challenging as we will need to find a further £3.6m of savings to meet
the expected reductions in government funding. The options we have
available to balance the budget for the fire and rescue service will be
increasingly difficult to implement meaning we need to think differently
about how we deliver services across County Durham and the Borough
of Darlington.

Delivering on our vision of Safest People, Safest Places remains the

focus of our work and the Authority has produced this plan to enable Councillor Michele Hodgson
local people to see how their fire and rescue service will work with them, Chair County Durham and

and with partner organisations, to ensure that local communities are Darlington Fire and Rescue
safe despite the financial challenges. Authority

Three Year Strategic Plan 03
Page 7



mo ue|d 216931e13S Je9A 934yL

(ST0Z wouy) a1ua) bulures

B4]JUdD SIIAIBS [edluydal

OH

uone3s aJi4 Ajlunwwo) uojbuieq
uoneIS aJld 3)IseD pleuleg %

UONEIS 314 B|ePSIAL-UI-U0IBIPPIN

19UI0D Y2109 JYIHSMYOA ,,) -
PETR HLYON m%_._.ummm_
- Lo N\
o \ _1wf_mum:_n_ Mo weybujuleg @ adoH 13so9Mm
1=t T e © [ J vVIidawWwno
! 961099 315 $93]-Uo- @ |16aeds
g ‘T uo3a|pPp! yrominy o
<~ 3 _ﬁﬁ.z sdioul@ 36pLig €339 mmBom_
:Oum:__._moe abplgadIald © SHIPAM
[ O ]
uopP(d01s 2b.12qpes® @ uopuang jea19 piojuteo® =) v..m:‘.mne @ uojbuie]
e ® :85.0 © wepesipg, .
ybnoagsa|ppiin uojule: [ J
@ Uowousig dospuiers® M suorsiayon # R e e
uojuiels jealn wejog ’ @ 4pipjewoy ®
® uojbuiyblely @ ®
34J119Ay uoymaN pIa1P20D .couw’_v_u__\,_ ® wnebuniyy
ANVITI3IAIID o
e PooMUSAI® P uors3bo3 e 3|EPS99 1-Ul-UoIB|PPIN
uopJoN@® @ uopjiys a|mousIenINg
ASlION® -
uibbigman®
v_wcomumme 9 pueppny doysig
) Aspoyswey PL0IPY [116s1en3®
weuys|ppii aozm_m. quiods3y () ([ 3299 uopbueT@®
® 10odajey yHojui0d poomieH
© J1oowAuuads (]
® 004D
uo Mw AL ° o e
jelays . H o_m._uxoLU UOIBUIIM weybuisjom
uapa|SaH speaym 8 ®
() ° ® MeT MOoL d A9]423S0.14 689V ®
@ o
unojpeuS, aypulys | Uopuelg @ sasnoyJaiem adoyuess ajebiseg RERE)
wo_._uuué wINgIays [ ) ysmod @
amseH o weyang >Hediesg Aesuiod
(] "o :ch_ﬁ_n_ o~ © ,ﬁm_ ©  ©/lepes
LeplEll == 1ed Asjbue \
uoauLey S Ald uojsLoes CIRLSITE, RN
159 & : : J9)saypue .
uoHnNW® UHOMS3IGING o 0“ puET playumMo.
apiss|ise) o
° weyeas @) OPImss|bbnw
O AsjwnT jeasn pesybesy Uleld () .
pjoyuapueH :E:@ ® . nﬁ%& ° slaAgpunwp3
() 139su0)
uoyed As|uels
wdlno® Aajéwopa @ ANVIHdIdNWNHLYON
plaiuel@®

puelspuns

uonels adi4 Ajunwwod pueppny doysig
uoneIS 214 3)11PAY UoIMaN

uonels a4 piayabpas

uol3e}S 414 Ajlunwwo) JoowAuuads
uonels adi4 %0015

uonels adi4 adoyuels

YVIMBINAL |

peayssien o

uonels ally weyng

uonels alid |IIH Aspeaym
uonels all4 9sR3ad
uonels ally weyess

uoness ali4 ployuspueH ybiH

uonels adl4 Ajunwiwo) 13IsU0D

3
8
o

@ piaydouing

‘Aouabiawa Aue 03 Ajjualadwod pue AjaA130a4e puodsal
UBD 9M 3INSUD 03 SIIIAISS SNISaJ pue a4y bulnoqybiau dno pue
S|I2UNOD |BJ0| ‘9JIAI9S SduR|NqWY IS YHON 33 ‘Adeingeisuo)d
weydng se yons siauped Ino Yyam A|asod dIom os|e s

‘sawlf} ||e e sapusabiaws
03} puodsaJ 03 ApeaJ Ajjeuonesado ulewsad Asyj ainsus
03 Juswdinba 3593 pue uiejuiew ‘uiesy Aenbad suiayybyadly 1nQ

ue|d 21693181315 JeDA 994y 0

*sapuabiswa jo sadAy Jayio

Auew pue sjuapioul |edjwaYd snopJlezey ‘6uipoo)y pue
S9NDJSaJ J93BM ‘SBYSE.D [Ied pue Jje ‘Suols|||0d d1jed)
peod ‘sadly buipnppul sapuabiawa 03 ANOdSIY 2M

"A1BSS09U 949YM UOIIOE JUSWDII0NUD

bunyey ‘sis1dnaoo pue sisumo 03 aouepinb

pue ao1Ape buipiroad sade|dyiom Jo suondadsul
epapun s1a01j0 Alajes auiy pue siiybysaly ano

‘uaddey
op sapuabiaws uaym ajdoad 13310ud 03 HOM M

‘Ay2jes peod pue ady 3noqe

S9[3IUNWWOD INO WJojul 03 sapuabe Jaued yyum dom
pue S|ooyds Ul S)|e3 A}2jes peod pue adiy 30 Adied
1eaA yoea syoayd Ajajes adiy sawoy 000’‘8T ueyl alow
9 eapuUn JJe3S dUl-3uody JaY3o pue siaiybially InQ

*aoe|d 35414 8Y3 Ul BUIINIO0 WOy
sapuabiawa Jayjo pue sadiy LNIATUd O3 H10M M

*S3PIYSA (HX{) SALIP |99YM-IN0J 6
S3I01YaA dsuodsad pajabiel g
S9|DIYDA 3sI|edads TT

swojie|d Joppe| [elIdR Z .

saulbus a1y SuI-3UOy LT

:s9pnpoul 32914 ANO

'S9INUIW DAY UIYIM dsuodsad

e buipinoad sia3ybiyadly swi-1ed ||ed>-uo - paulelay
3ybiu 3B UOoI3RIS BY) 03 IXdU UOI3RPOLLLIOIIR

woJy [|e2-uo sia3ybuyaaly swn-Iny yum

asuodsal awiAep ajeipawwl - snid Buimaad-Aeq
‘Spua3oam pue

Jybiu je sumyybuyadly swiy-3ed buisn asuodsad ||ed
-Uuo ue yjim Aepli4 03 Aepuoly sta3ybiadly swiy-||ny
Buisn asuodsal swnAep ajeipawwil - pamadd-Aeq
's123ybyaay swn-|iny

Buisn asuodsal Inoy Hz djeIpawwll - PIYS -2-¢

*sapuabiawa 0] puodsal 03 ade|d pue awi 3ybu
aU3 Je 3|qe|ieAe sua3ybiyaaly pa|IRS Jo Jaquinu JybL U3
9ARYU 9M 2Jnsud 03 swa)sAs Ajnp jo abues e yaom ap

ENUER]
S9IAJIDS [BOIUYDD) B puk 243uad buluiely ‘siayenbpeay
9D|AJDS B ‘suolje)}s iy GT Ul pajedo| ade 9

‘Jje3s poddns £/ pue ‘Jje3s wood |043uod 97

(l1e2-uo swn-1ed 89T pue swn-||ny 8y¢) siaaybyaly
leuonesado 9T :jo Bunsisuod yeis 619 Aojdwa s

3jes sanIuUNWWao
buidoay

saoe|d 1sajes ‘9jdoad 1sajes



Safest People, Safest Places

Our priorities

Our staff are committed to
making sure that people,
businesses and organisations in
County Durham and Darlington
are protected by working towards
our vision of: Safest People,
Safest Places.

To help us achieve our vision we
aim to:

» Protect people and properties
and prevent incidents from
happening;

« Invest in the people who work
for us to ensure we get the
best contribution from them;

« Continue to improve our
service in a sustainable way
that offers value for money.

06 Three Year Strategic Plan

More than 618,000 people live
within our Service area of
approximately 2,460 kilometres,
with just under half of these
people being in work. The
population comprises
approximately 51.1% females
and 2.8% ethnic minorities;
19.9% are under 18 and 17.9%
are over 65.

The area faces a humber of
challenges including poor health
statistics, low life expectancies
and low economic activity.
Despite real improvements in
recent years, educational
attainment is below the national
average. Many parts of the area
also have housing stock that is
sub-standard, falling below
accepted decency levels.

Clearly these factors contribute
significantly to the high levels of
social deprivation observed in our
area. According to national
statistics, County Durham and
Darlington has 12.8% of its ward
areas in the top 10% most
deprived; 29.8% in the top 20%
most deprived; and 46.5% in the
top 30% most deprived areas in
the country.

These factors impact on the risk
profile for County Durham and
Darlington and by understanding
our local area we can determine
where we need to allocate
resources in order to mitigate
these risks.

Page 9



The Authority is focussed on
managing risks and ensuring that
resources are allocated in the
best way to reduce the number of
emergency incidents and the
associated risk of injury, death or
loss in the local area. Our 15 fire
stations, 27 front line fire engines
and specialist equipment are
strategically spread throughout
the county and borough so that
we can get to fires and other
incidents as quickly as possible.

Our staff work across six districts
and offer support to each other.
We also have mutual aid
agreements with neighbouring
fire services so that we can assist
each other if a major emergency
occurs.

Page 10

Identifying and
assessing risks

The Authority has a statutory
duty under the Fire and Rescue
Services Act 2004 to provide a
safe and effective operational
response to meet a wide range of
incidents. We fulfil our
responsibilities under other key
legislation such as the Civil
Contingencies Act 2004, the Fire
and Rescue Service
(Emergencies) (England) Order
2007, the Regulatory Reform (Fire
Safety) Order 2005 and the
Health and Safety at Work Act
1974.

The Authority is also guided by
the government's Fire and Rescue
National Framework for England,
published in 2012, which requires
the Authority to identify and
assess all foreseeable fire and
rescue related risks.

County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Our response to these risks could
include: extinguishing fires,
rescuing people at road traffic
collisions or those who are
trapped either at height or in
confined spaces, dealing with
building collapse, flooding and
other related water incidents,
dealing with chemical spillages
and preventing damage to the
environment.

The Authority also plays a full
part in the National Resilience
Programme, which prepares for
and responds to national major
emergencies and unexpected
events such as natural disasters
or terrorist incidents. The
resources we maintain to support
this programme include High
Volume Pumps, Mass
Decontamination Equipment and
hazardous materials specialists
who are trained to detect and
identify toxic and harmful
substances.

Three Year Strategic Plan 07



Safest People, Safest Places

The risks we face

Our local risk registers record
details of the risks that we
manage on a local basis and we
have District Plans in place that
determine our approach to
prevention, protection and
response in each locality.

There are a number of specific
risks within the area that could
significantly impact on local
communities which are covered in
the following sections:

08 Three Year Strategic Plan

Risk of death,
injury or loss
from fire

A risk all of our communities face
is that related to fire. Through our
prevention, protection and
response services we aim to
mitigate this risk. The degree of
risk varies depending on the local
area and the individual people
and lifestyles within that area.

Hoarding

In recent years the Service has
seen a notable increase in the
number of incidents involving
hoarders including two separate
dwelling fires involving fire
fatalities. Hoarding can create
significant risks to the individual,
the community and firefighters.
Hoarding large quantities of
materials, which may be
combustible, increases the risk
and severity of fire and makes it
harder to escape should a fire
occur. It is also much more
difficult for firefighters to locate
people trapped in a fire and
emergency responders risk being
trapped by falling debris.

Risk of death or
injury from road
traffic collisions

We have a number of major road
networks running through our
area and this presents a risk of
road traffic collisions occurring.
Collisions also frequently occur on
the many rural roads that exist
across County Durham and the
Borough of Darlington. We need
to ensure that we mitigate these
risks through our prevention and
response activities. Large scale
transport related emergency
incidents require an effective
coordinated response; therefore,
we have joint protocols in place
with partner agencies such as the
police, ambulance service and
local authorities to deal with any
foreseeable major transport
incident.

Page 11



Risk of extreme
weather

An increasing risk relates to
extreme weather; this includes
the risk of death, injury or loss
from flooding. In recent years the
number of significant flooding
events has increased. We have a
number of areas within County
Durham and Darlington that have
been subject to severe localised
flooding and in the past year we
deployed some of our national
resilience assets to deal with
major flooding in the south of the
country.

Risk of terrorist
activity

Events over the last few years,
both at home and abroad, have
increased the risk of terrorist
activity impacting on our society.
The Fire and Rescue Service plays
a major role in protecting the
community in the event of such
an incident and along with the
other blue light services
contributes significantly to the
planning and training for such
events.

Page 12

Industrial incidents

Emergency incidents at industrial
premises pose a specific risk at
individual sites and a wider risk to
local communities depending on
the type of event. We provide fire
safety advice to local businesses
as part of our protection services
and we are equipped and trained
to respond to incidents that do
occur.

County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Three Year Strategic Plan 09



Safest People, Safest Places

Risks in specific areas

We are aware that there are different risks specific to certain parts of our area. We manage these risks through
our district structure and local risk plans, which enable us to target our resources based on local knowledge and

intelligence.

Wear and Tees
district

(Bishop Auckland,
Stanhope and
Middleton in Teesdale
fire stations)

The Wear and Tees district area is
located in the heart of our area.
There is a mix of industrial,
commercial, residential and rural
areas that represent a varied
range of risks that need to be
managed effectively. This includes
a number of large industrial
estates, water risks relating
specifically to Stanhope and
Middleton, a number of busy 'A’
roads and a number of large
social housing estates that do not
meet modern standards.

10 Three Year Strategic Plan

Derwentside
district

(Consett and High
Handenhold fire
stations)

The specific risks identified within
the Derwentside district area
relate to a significant level of
social deprivation. The area
around Consett has seen a large
increase in the number of new
homes built and supporting
amenities giving the area a varied
risk profile. The area also includes
the largest open air museum in
Europe at Beamish. Local industry
consists of traditional light
engineering and more modern
service industry sites.

Darlington district
(Darlington and
Barnard Castle fire
stations)

Darlington is a large market town
with a population of
approximately 105,000 residents.
The Darlington area comprises
large scale industrial, commercial
and residential areas resulting in
a broad mix of risks. There are a
large number of Houses in
Multiple Occupation (HiMO) and
several large social housing
estates. The A1M motorway runs
through the Darlington area and
the East-Coast mainline passes
through the town serving a major
rail station. Barnard Castle is
predominantly rural with small
scale residential areas, a hospital
and a young offender's prison.
Also located within the town is
Bowes Museum, a major heritage
site housing many important
works of art. The town is also
home to a large scale
pharmaceutical production site.

Page 13



Easington district
(Peterlee, Seaham
and Wheatley Hill fire
stations)

The Easington district includes
concentrated areas of population
with specific challenges with some
of the highest levels of
deprivation in the country.

There are also a number of large
industrial estates in Peterlee and
Seaham with a broad mix of
businesses from heavy
manufacturing to modern service
industry sites. The transport
related risks arise from the
railway line running through the
area, the A19 road network and a
number of busy rural roads; these
all contribute to the diverse risks
within the Easington District area.

Page 14

Sedgefield district
(Newton Aycliffe,
Spennymoor,
Sedgefield fire
stations)

There are significant industrial
risks in this area, particularly in
Newton Aycliffe, as well as a
number of concentrated areas of
population. The industrial estates
located in Newton Aycliffe
incorporate a number of large
chemical, engineering and
commercial sites. Communities
are served by some of the
county's busiest roads including
the A1M and A167 with the East
Coast railway line also running
through the district area. A major
factory is under construction in
Newton Aycliffe that will produce
high speed trains for the Great
Western and East Coast lines.

County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Durham and
Chester-le-Street
district

(Durham and Crook
fire stations)

The significant risks managed
within this district are the World
Heritage Site, which includes
Durham Cathedral and Castle;
the University of Durham and
three hospitals. There are also
three prisons within the area and
new local industrial estates have
been established consisting of
modern retail and manufacturing
facilities interspersed with more
traditional industries. Water risks
include the River Wear which runs
through the district area and the
centre of Durham City. The busy
Durham railway station is an
important link on the East Coast
mainline. The city is also served
by busy trunk roads such as the
A167, A690 and A1M motorway,
which all run through the district
area.

Three Year Strategic Plan 1 1



Safest People, Safest Places

home fire safety checks

carried out

Addressing the risks

Our integrated approach to
reducing risks and keeping local
communities safe is focused
around the prevention, protection
and response arrangements we
have in place.

Prevention

Our prevention work is focused on

developing and delivering

educational interventions,

targeted towards the most

vulnerable people, to reduce fire

deaths and injuries within the

home. We use a range of

information and data to identify

the most vulnerable people and

communities in our area.

Research shows that people are

more at risk from fire if they:

¢ Are over 60 years of age;

e Live alone;

¢ Have mental health issues;

e Suffer mobility or hearing loss
issues;

¢ Have alcohol or drug
dependency;

¢ Smoke;

* Have a learning disability.

1 2 Three Year Strategic Plan

Improving safety in
the home

This year we will undertake
approximately 18,000 home fire
safety visits to households in
County Durham and Darlington.
We will deliver home fire safety
visits and fit free smoke alarms to
all households in our area but we
actively target those people who
are most at risk. We aim to
deliver at least 70% of our visits
to vulnerable people who are
most at risk of fire.

We have increased the amount of
time dedicated to prevention
activities and significantly
increased the number of home
fire safety visits we undertake
each year. However, it may
become more difficult to sustain
these levels should the reductions
in government funding continue.

Hoarding

To address the increasing
incidence of fires involving
hoarders, we work closely with
other public safety agencies and
housing providers to raise
awareness of the issues.

We share information and
intelligence to minimise the risk
to the hoarders and their families,
their neighbours and firefighters.
We have also raised awareness at
a national level, influencing the
creation of a national hoarder
working group.

Page 15



Reducing road
traffic collisions

A third of all people killed or
seriously injured on the roads are
aged 17 to 24. This is our highest
risk age group and our work
focuses on targeting road safety
education and intervention at
these young people. We work
with young people through local
schools, colleges and universities
as well as visiting workplaces.
The extra capacity we created by
changing the shift systems for our
firefighters has ensured that we
can increase the work we do in
this important area.

Page 16

Reducing
deliberate fires

Deliberate fires account for a
large proportion of the
emergency incidents we attend.
Our prevention strategy is
focused on working with partners
including the police, local
authorities and other agencies to
understand where the areas of
greatest risk are and to work
together to reduce the number of
deliberate fires that occur. This
approach allows us to share
information, analyse data and
investigate fire related crimes to
ensure appropriate action is taken
against offenders. We also deliver
targeted educational activities to
change the behaviours of those
people who are likely to commit
arson.

County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Protecting young
people

Our longer term prevention
strategy is also focused on young
people. The earlier we can begin
educating young people in
keeping themselves safe, the
more chance there is of our
community safety messages
making a difference in the longer
term. As positive role models, our
professional firefighters and
community safety staff can assist
young people to make a positive
contribution to society and
improve their life skills.

We aim to visit every school in
County Durham and Darlington
each year to deliver a range of
focused educational packages.

These visits are designed to
ensure young people are more
aware of their own responsibilities
and help them to take steps to
reduce their risk of injury or
harm. We will also continue to
work with some of our most
disadvantaged young people
through specific educational
programmes.

Three Year Strategic Plan 13



Safest People, Safest Places

Protection

Protecting local communities and
the businesses that provide
economic prosperity in County
Durham and Darlington is a key
role for our Service. Our
prevention work is aimed at
keeping people safe and our
protection work is focused on
ensuring that commercial and
industrial premises are safe
places for people to work and
visit. We have recently changed
the way we provide our protection
services and local firefighters are
now heavily involved in working
with businesses in their area.

We have invested a significant
amount of time and resource into
delivering specialist training to
these firefighters to ensure that
we can increase the amount of
protection work undertaken whilst
protecting the number of frontline
firefighting staff we have to
respond to emergencies.

14 Three Year Strategic Plan

Risk-based
programme of
safety inspections
for local businesses

The type of premises inspected
and the frequency that visits are
carried out is determined by the
level of risk a business poses to
the occupiers and the community.
Our risk based audit programme
ensures that those premises most
at risk of fire are prioritised by
our protection activities.

The changes we have made to
shift systems have created
additional capacity to enable our
firefighters to carry out
inspections of premises within
their station area.

Our dedicated fire safety officers
focus on premises that are more
complex and which represent a
higher risk. This is the most
appropriate use of the resources
we have available and enables us
to ensure we allocate resources
according to risk.

Business
Engagement

We engage with local businesses
through the established fire
liaison groups and the North East
Chamber of Commerce. We also
work with enforcement agencies
to share good practice to help
reduce the burden of inspection
on local businesses. This balanced
approach allows us to meet our
statutory responsibilities while
helping local businesses ensure
they do not face significant fire
related risks.

Page 17



Response

We are fully committed to
prevention and protection
activities to keep our local
communities safe and to ensure
our local businesses provide safe
working facilities for staff and
customers. Our response strategy
is designed to provide a resilient
emergency response if an incident
does occur. We believe we do this
in the most efficient and effective
way possible and many of the
proposals we consulted on last
year were designed to help us to
achieve this.

Page 18

Response
standards

The new crewing arrangements
introduced at Newton Aycliffe and
Seaham fire stations and the
alterations to working patterns
and routines at all other full-time
fire stations have been very
successful, made us more
efficient, and helped us to deal
with reduced funding without
increasing response times and
risk for communities.

County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Command and
Control

We provide a 24/7 emergency call
handling and mobilising service
which ensures we send the right
vehicles, equipment and staff to
emergencies promptly. We are in
the process of implementing a
new command and control system
to provide us with state-of-the-art
technology to ensure our control
room service is as efficient and
effective as possible. We are also
trialing a new shift system for our
control room staff, which will
improve resilience and allow for
additional work to be undertaken
within the control room.

Three Year Strategic Plan 1 5



Safest People, Safest Places

of house fires attended
within 11 minutes

Performance

Accountability to All of our financial and performance information is available via the
website www.ddfire.gov.uk

local communities

We are committed to sharing the
information we hold in relation to et S o S S S —
risks facing local communities and
businesses so that we can learn
from the experiences of people
who live and work in our area.

In order to ensure that the
information we publish is
accessible we make it available on
our website. We also provide
specific documents in other
formats should they be
requested.

Decision making

Our Fire Authority meeting
information and reports are also
available on-line and members of
the public are welcome to attend A 7 PR S . :
Fire Authority meetings as y I = o
observers to see how we manage sty
the Service. . N AR = E

1 6 Three Year Strategic Plan
Page 19



Performance

As an emergency service it is
extremely important that we
regularly review our performance
across a range of measures. We
look closely at performance
trends to see how well we are
doing and we compare our
performance against other fire
and rescue services on a regular
basis. The following section sets
out a snapshot of our
performance in a number of key
areas. Further information is
available from the website or by
contacting us.

Accidental house
fires

Accidental house fires are lower
than five years ago due to our
increased prevention work
focussing on home fire safety
visits particularly targeting those
most vulnerable and at risk.
However, they remain a priority
area for us.

Home fire safety
visits

The number of home fire safety
visits, which are carried out by
our firefighters, has increased
significantly over the last few
years as the changes we have
introduced to work routines have
improved the amount of
productive time available. More
than 80% of the visits undertaken
are carried out in high risk areas
or involve vulnerable people. This
increase in performance has had
a direct impact on driving down
fires in people's homes.

Page 20

350

300
250
200
150
100

50

09/10

County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14

Number of accidental house fires

16000
14000
12000
10000
8000
6000
4000
2000

09/10

10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14

Number of home fire safety checks undertaken

Three Year Strategic Plan 1 7



Safest People, Safest Places

Injuries to the
public in accidental
house fires

Whilst we have reduced the
number of accidental house fires,
the number of injuries to the
public has remained generally
static. We analyse the
circumstances where injuries are
occurring and we will continue to
use this information to inform the
prevention work that we
undertake in future years to
reduce injuries from fire in the
home.

House fire fatalities

Although focusing on prevention
has resulted in a significant long-
term reduction in the number of
fire fatalities that occur in our
area, four people died in
accidental house fires last year.
Reducing the number of people
who die in a house fire remains
one of our main priorities but an
ageing population and the recent
changes to welfare policy provide
greater challenges for us in terms
of prevention. Key to improving
our performance in this area is
the Fire Fatalities Protocol that
the Authority has established with
partner agencies such as local
authorities, police, social care
providers, drug and alcohol teams
and housing providers. Through
this arrangement we have
provided fire awareness training
to the staff of these agencies to
assist us in identifying the most
vulnerable in our communities.
We have also introduced a
process by which this data can be
shared so that appropriate
prevention measures can be
implemented.

18 Three Year Strategic Plan

09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14

Number of house fire injuries

N W A~ U

09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14

Number of fire fatalities in the past five years

Page 21



County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

of non-domestic property
fires attended within
8 minutes

Non-domestic 140
property fires 120
100
These figures include fires in
public, commercial and industrial 80
premises. Although our 60
performance has improved over
40

the last five years we aim to
continue to improve our 20
performance in this key area as

this type of fire can have a

significant impact on our local

09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14

economy. Non-domestic property fires
Fire safety audits 6000
5000
By introducing new working
routines on fire stations and 4000
transferring work to frontline 3000
firefighters, we have been able to
deliver a significant increase in 2000
the number of premises receiving 1000

a fire safety audit, despite a
reduction in the number of
centrally based fire safety staff.

09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14

Number of fire safety audits (five year trends)

Three Year Strategic Plan 19
Page 22



Safest People, Safest Places

Small fires 3500
3000

The wet summer of 2012 led to

an unusually low number of small 2500

fires that year. Last year saw the 2000

number return to expected levels

although the 5 year trend is still 1500

downward. Whilst these types of
fire which include rubbish,
bonfires, grass and gorse fires do 500
not often pose a direct significant

risk to the public, they divert our

resources away from other key

activities and therefore we will Small fires in the past five years
continue to work to achieve
further reductions in this area.
The number of smaller fires that
we attend is, to some extent,
linked to the prevailing weather
conditions.

1000

09/10

11/12 12/13 13/14

10/11

There is a recognised link
between deliberately set small
fires and other forms of antisocial
behaviour. Research has shown
that a disproportionate number of
deliberate fires are started by
children and young people
therefore education and
engagement with this group is
key to reducing these incidents.

20 Three Year Strategic Plan
Page 23



County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

of road traffic collisions
attended within 11 minutes

Emergency response standards

Our emergency response standards set out how quickly we aim to respond to certain types of emergency
incidents.

The standards relate to the time it takes to get the first fire appliance to the scene from the time it is alerted by
our Fire Control Centre.

Current response rates

Response standard 2013/14 target 2013/14 actual
% of house fires attended within 8 minutes 70% 72.2%
% of house fires attended within 11 minutes 90% 90.6%
% of non-domestic property fires attended within 8 minutes  70% 77.7%
% of non-domestic property fires attended within 11 minutes 90% 92.6%
% of road traffic collisions attended within 11 minutes 75% 88.4%
% of road traffic collisions attended within 15 minutes 90% 95.6%

Achievement of our response standards helps us to maintain an excellent response service to our local
communities. If the Service is to continue to meet these standards over the medium term we need to consider
different ways of working given the anticipated on-going reductions in funding.

Three Year Strategic Plan 2 1
Page 24



Safest People, Safest Places

Assurance

As an emergency service, we
recognise that it is extremely
important that we can
demonstrate that we are
operationally competent and that
we manage the fire and rescue
service in line with the
expectations of a modern public
service. We also need to ensure
we can demonstrate that we
provide value for money and that
we spend public money in
accordance with the expectations
of local council tax payers.

Operational assurance

We have systems and standards
in place that are designed to
ensure that everything we do is in
accordance with health and safety
regulations. We have agreed ways
of doing things and standard
procedures so that we can
address operational matters
consistently and in accordance
with recognised best practice.

22 Three Year Strategic Plan

Our operational staff are trained
to exceptionally high standards to
ensure that they can undertake
their work to the standards that
are expected of them.

Financial assurance

Our financial performance is
considered on an annual basis by
the external auditor who provides
the Authority with a report on the
financial statements. Details of
previous audit reports are
available from the website or on
request. The latest approved
accounts were signed off by the
auditor in September 2013. The
auditor provided the Authority
with a clean bill of financial health
and confirmed that value for
money was being achieved.

Governance
assurance

Our decision making processes
are transparent and we consult on
our key projects and initiatives
prior to the Combined Fire
Authority making final decisions.

Our structures reflect the
requirement to ensure we have
good governance processes in
place and we employ qualified
professional staff whose role it is
to ensure good governance is
embedded throughout the
organisation.

The Authority prepares an annual
governance statement that gives
details of its approach to
governance and the key risks that
exist. This is also available on the
Service website
www.ddfire.gov.uk

Page 25



Finance and resources

The financial
challenge

We are facing the most significant
financial challenge in our history
as a fire and rescue authority. Our
central government funding has
been cut by 26% since 2010,
meaning a reduction in the
money we have to provide
services of £3.53M between 2010
and 2014.

So far, we have been able to
reduce our costs by providing
services in different ways without
increasing risk in local
communities.

Efficiency

We have implemented significant
changes in the way we provide all
of our services over a humber of

years. We have already

Page 26

implemented the vast majority of
the cost savings measures
identified as best practice
demonstrating that our fire and
rescue service is already lean and
efficient.

Our crewing arrangements and
shift systems are amongst the
most efficient in the country
despite having some of the
busiest fire appliances nationally
with some stations covering areas
twice the national average. We
also have a very lean support
staff and management structure.

We always strive to identify new
ways of working that do not
increase risk in local
communities. However, this is
becoming more and more
difficult, particularly as the
majority of our services are
statutory and because our service
model is already very efficient.

County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Examples of how we have
achieved an extremely efficient
service model include:

» Operational staff agreeing to
alter the shift systems to
shorten night shifts and
removing non-productive time;

- Reduced crewing on multi-
pump stations;

« Introducing new duty systems
on lower call volume stations;

« Introducing annualised hours
for all operational staff;

» Introducing self-rostering for
day crewing stations;

» Responding to small fires using
smaller fire appliances;

« Introducing a mixed crewing
arrangement allowing full and
part-time staff to work
together more effectively.

Three Year Strategic Plan 23



Safest People, Safest Places

How the Fire
Authority is funded

Funding for your local fire and
rescue service is provided from
two main sources: the
government provides 45% of our
funding by way of grant; the
remaining 55% is received from
local council tax payers and non-
domestic rate-payers in County
Durham and Darlington.

Central government is cutting the
grant funding it provides to us.

Since 2010 we have transformed
the way we provide services to
the community. We have reduced
headquarters based staff and
transferred the workload to our
frontline operational staff on fire
stations. This has enabled us to
make the required £3.53m of
savings without reducing
performance or increasing risk.
However, we have reached a point
where any further changes are
likely to have a detrimental
impact on our operational
resources.

The option of reducing frontline
services would inevitably not only
impact on emergency response
but also significantly reduce the

How the money is spent (2014/15)

24 Three Year Strategic Plan

capacity of the organisation to
deliver prevention and protection
activities, which have been a
major contributor to the reduction
in emergency incidents we
attend.

We have worked hard to help
staff understand the reasons
behind changes and how they can
make a contribution by changing
working practices and taking on
new work to improving efficiency.
Changes to duty systems,
increased mixed crewing of
appliances, delivering training
through associate trainers rather
than centrally based staff are all
examples of how our staff are
embracing change.

Employees £21,677,064
Premises £3.386,603
Transport £800,199
SupPlles and £3,652,932
services

Capital £1,942,418
Financing

Contingencies £818,917

Page 27



Our medium term
financial plan

At a time when the future is so
uncertain, it is important that we
have a medium term financial
plan in place. This will allow us to
work towards balancing the
budget over the medium term
taking account of our
expectations of future central and
local funding.

Our medium term financial plan
for 2015/16 to 2016/17 is set out
below. We have assumed that:

e funding reductions for 15/16 -
17/18 will be an average of the
previous two years;

e pay awards will be 1.5% each
year;

e council tax increases by 1.9%
each year.

Page 28

Revenue budget

County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

15/16 16/17 17/18

£m £m £m

Total government funding 11.886 11.069 10.398
Local non-domestic rates income 1.478 1.508 1.538
Council tax income 14.967 15.251 15.541
Total funding 28.331 27.828 27.477
Total net spend 29.601 30.624 31.036
Less savings already identified -0.893 -0.893 -0.893
Revised total net spend 28.708 29.731 30.143
Funding gap -0.377 -1.903 -2.666

Three Year Strategic Plan 25



Safest People, Safest Places

Estates improvement programme

Despite the challenges of
reductions in revenue budgets,
prudent financial planning has
enabled the Authority to invest in
modernising fire stations, training
facilities and providing a fit for
purpose headquarters building.

Several of the projects have
already been delivered, with a
number of others in the build
phase. They represent part of a
wider programme of collaboration
that will deliver significant
financial savings and operational
improvements as well as real
benefits to local communities.
The programme supports the
Government’s policy direction
around increased collaboration
and integration of emergency
services and allows efficiencies to
be realised without reducing
frontline services.

26 Three Year Strategic Plan

We have shared our fire station in
Darlington with the North East
Ambulance Service for several
years. From this year ambulance
crews will also operate from our
fire station in Middleton-in-
Teesdale.

In 2013, we established the first
joint fire/police station in Newton
Aycliffe.

We are working with Durham
Constabulary to open a joint
Fire/Police Training Centre in
2015 that will be truly innovative
and possibly the first of its kind in
the UK.

We are seeking government
funding to deliver improvements
to several of our fire stations that
are no longer fit for purpose.

Page 29



Seeking your views on
our future plans

In the last 4 years, we have been
forced to cut £3.53m from what
we spend on your fire and rescue
service but predicted further
reductions in government funding
over the next 3 years mean we
may need to find further savings
of £3.6m.

So far the changes we have made
have delivered savings without
significantly impacting on the
front-line services we provide.
However, going forward there are
some difficult decisions to be
made as finding new ways of
working that do not increase risk
to our local communities is
becoming more and more
difficult, particularly as the
majority of our services are
statutory duties.

It is likely that a number of the
options we will need to examine
will have an effect on frontline
resources and impact on risk to
our communities. To better
understand the views of people
living and working in County
Durham and Darlington, we are
seeking the views of local people,
our staff, partners and other
stakeholders on the following
proposals:

Page 30

County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Proposal one - sharing our buildings with
the police and ambulance service

In May 2013, the Government
published the findings of a review
into the efficiency of fire and
rescue services. The report
suggests ways in which fire and
rescue services can collaborate
with each other and with other
blue-light services to improve
services and reduce costs in a
period of ongoing funding cuts.
One way of reducing costs whilst
improving the services we provide
is to share our buildings,
something this Authority already
does with both the police and
ambulance services.

For example, in 2013 we opened
the first joint fire/police station at
Newton Aycliffe and we have
successfully shared our fire
station site in Darlington with the
North East Ambulance Service
(NEAS) for several years. More
recently, we have been successful
in securing government funding
to build a joint fire/police training
centre at Bowburn. Due to open
in 2015, the shared facility
represents a truly innovative
approach to training the
emergency services and is
believed to be the first of its kind
in the country.

We are committed to building on
the success of these projects and
it is our intention to co-locate the
Police and/or the Ambulance
Service at our fire stations where
it is feasible and beneficial to do
so. To do this, we have
established a joint project with
Durham Constabulary and NEAS
to identify opportunities for co-
locating staff and resources into
shared accommodation to help
reduce costs and support our
local communities in a more
integrated way. We are seeking
government funding to enable us
to do this.

Q1) Do you agree that
we should share the
following fire stations
with our partners?

e Barnard Castle (Fire,
Police, Ambulance and
Mountain Rescue)

e Stanhope (Fire and
Police)

e Crook (Fire and Police)

» Sedgefield (Fire and
Ambulance)

Three Year Strategic Plan 27



Safest People, Safest Places

Proposal two - expand the role of our firefighters to include

responding to specific medical emergencies

In recent years, we have
successfully reduced the number
of fires and other emergencies
that our firefighters are called to
attend. However, the number of
medical emergencies that our
colleagues in the North East
Ambulance Service (NEAS) attend
each year has increased
significantly placing greater
demand on their emergency
responders.

Our firefighters already work
closely with our NEAS colleagues
and train regularly so we can
provide an excellent service when
attending emergencies together.
Our priority has always been
about putting the patient first and
this Authority has invested in
equipping our fire appliances with
quality medical equipment and
training our firefighters in first aid
and trauma care.

We are keen to support our NEAS
colleagues and also enhance the
services we provide the
communities of County Durham
and Darlington by training our
firefighters as co-responders. Co-
responders are firefighters who
are also trained in basic life
support. They respond, along with
the ambulance service, to specific
medical emergencies in their local
communities.

28 Three Year Strategic Plan

Co-responder firefighters will be,
first and foremost, County
Durham and Darlington Fire and
Rescue Service employees. The
priority is to ensure our fire
stations maintain adequate
emergency response cover and, if
sufficient cover is available, then
a firefighter may co-respond to
medical emergencies such as:

e Cardiac arrest;

e Serious/uncontrollable
bleeding;

* Breathing difficulties;

¢ Unconscious patient;

e Choking;

e Signs of shock;

e Diabetic/epileptic
emergency;

e Suspected stroke;

* Traumatic injuries.

There are already successful co-
responder schemes in place in
other parts of the country. They
are intended to support the
ambulance service where
firefighters may be first on the
scene and will always be
supported by a paramedic as
quickly as possible. Firefighters
are not expected to act as
paramedics, as they are not
trained to undertake this role.

Q2) Do you support our
intention to have
appropriately trained
firefighters respond to
specific medical
emergencies in support
of the North East
Ambulance Service
(NEAS)?

Page 31



County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Proposal three - review how we crew the aerial ladder platform
appliance based at Darlington

This Authority currently maintains
two specialist vehicles called
Aerial Ladder Platforms (ALP) that
are based at our fire stations in
Durham City and Darlington.

An ALP has the capability of
reaching floors in buildings which
are higher than the ladders
carried on our fire appliances can
reach. They are used either to
provide a high platform from
which firefighters can fight a fire,
or to enable firefighters to gain
access to high places. The ALP
appliances are only sent out to
emergency incidents when an
incident commander at the scene
decides the ALP is needed.

In 2013, we changed the way we
crew the ALP based at the fire
station in Durham. Previously two
fulltime firefighters were assigned
to crew the vehicle 24 hours a
day. The change involved moving
to a dual-crewing system where
the fulltime firefighters crewing
the other fire appliances based at
Durham fire station will transfer
over to the ALP when it is needed.
They are supported by retained
duty system firefighters based at
Durham.

Following implementation, our
analysis shows the response
times of the ALP appliance at
Durham are largely unaffected by
the changes but we delivered
savings of around £306k per year
by reducing the number of
firefighters needed at Durham fire
station.

Page 32

The ALP based at Darlington fire station attends around 90-100 calls per
year across the County Durham and Darlington area and also provides
support to our neighbouring fire and rescue services in North Yorkshire
and Cleveland as the map below shows.

CLEVELAND

~ w14
(/‘ Vs
- - NORTH -

YORKSHIRE .
Locations of incidents attended 4
by Darlington ALP in 2013/14. . ’
We intend to review how we crew the ALP appliance
based at Darlington to identify if we can deliver further
savings without increasing community risk. .

Q3) Do you agree that
we should staff the
Aerial Ladder Platform at
Darlington in a similar
way to how we staff the
Aerial Ladder Platform at
Durham?

Aerial Ladder Platform.

Three Year Strategic Plan 29



Safest People, Safest Places

Proposal four - review the number of emergency response fire

officers

The firefighters we employ to
crew the fire appliances based at
our fire stations deal with the
majority of the day-to-day
emergency incidents we are
called to attend.

We also employ a number of
emergency response fire officers
who respond in cars equipped
with blue lights and sirens to
provide support to firefighters
attending emergency incidents.
They are all trained in advanced
incident command so they can
take charge of large scale or more
complex incidents but are often
also qualified to undertake
specialist roles such as hazardous
materials advisor or fire
investigation officer. These
officers work a flexible duty
system to ensure we always
maintain sufficient numbers to
provide incident command and
specialist support 24/7.

30 Three Year Strategic Plan

When not responding to
emergency incidents, these fire
officers have day to day
managerial responsibilities that
include managing fire stations or
working within the training centre
or other specialist support
functions based at our
headquarters.

We intend to review the number
of flexible duty officers we employ
to establish whether savings can
be made whilst maintaining our
ability to effectively support our
incident command system.

Q4) Do you agree we
should review the
number of emergency
response fire officers we
employ?

Page 33



County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Proposal five - review how we crew the first fire engine at
Spennymoor Fire Station

We operate a range of duty systems to ensure we have the right number of skilled firefighters available at the
right time and in the right place to respond to emergencies.

As part of our research and evaluation of humerous options for delivering efficiency savings without increasing
risk to our communities, we have used computer modelling to assess the impact of changing the location of our
fire stations and how we crew our fire appliances.

As the graph below shows, our analysis of activity levels reveal that the first fire engine at Spennymoor
(callsign 09P1) is the least busy of our fire appliances that are crewed by fulltime firefighters on an immediate
response basis.

Number of calls to emergency incidents per fire appliance
March 13 to February 14

1st fire applisnce [DBFL)
nased a1 Spennymaoor Fire $tation
; III
. _-----II-I..lIIﬁI -

N »'\"Lﬂ.'\.m"pﬁ\nu'\\.ﬁﬂ.x b "p
FeF LTSI TTT TSI

Callsggn
B Retained [DDayCrewing 8-5 B Day Crewing Plus B Fulitime

&

g

&

E 88 BB

g2

Two of our twenty-seven front-line fire appliances are based at our fire station in Spennymoor. The first
appliance is crewed using fulltime firefighters who work the day-crewing duty system to provide an immediate
daytime response Monday to Friday. At night and at weekends, crewing of the first appliance is undertaken by
retained duty system firefighters who are 'on-call' from work or home to respond to the fire station within five
minutes.

We remain committed to not reducing the number of fire appliances or fire stations we provide across the
County Durham and Darlington area. However, the relatively low number of calls that the first fire appliance
based at Spennymoor fire station responds to has led us to consider reviewing how we crew the first fire
appliance to better reflect local risk and activity levels.

Changing the crewing system to a fully 'on-call' system using retained duty system firefighters would deliver

significant savings but would result in a reduction in fulltime cover during the day in Spennymoor and reduce
the level of cover in the central part of our service area.

Q5) Do you agree that we should review our staffing model at Spennymoor Fire Station?

Three Year Strategic Plan 3 1
Page 34



County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority

Let us know your views

Please let us know your views on our proposals by answering the five
questions below:

Consultation

Question Please tick

Q1 Do you agree that we should share the following fire stations Yes D No D
with our partners?
¢ Barnard Castle (Fire, Police, Ambulance and Mountain Rescue)
e Stanhope (Fire and Police)
¢ Crook (Fire and Police)
¢ Sedgefield (Fire and Ambulance)

Q2 Do you support our intention to have appropriately trained Yes D No D

firefighters respond to specific medical emergencies in
support of the North East Ambulance Service (NEAS)?

Q3 Do you agree that we staff the Aerial Ladder Platform at Darlington Yes D No D
in a similar way to how we staff the Aerial Ladder Platform at Durham?

Q4 Do you agree we should review the number of emergency Yes D No D
response fire officers we employ?

Q5 Do you agree that we should review our staffing model at Yes D No El
Spennymoor Fire Station?

(@00 Y 58 12 1= 1 1 4=

You can take part in our consultation by clicking on 'IRMP Consultation' on our website:
www.ddfire.gov.uk
Alternatively, you can tear off this page and send it to us at:
County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters,
Belmont Business Park, Durham, DH1 1TW

32 Three Year Strategic Plan
Page 35



County Durham and Darlington

Safest People, Safest Places Fire and Rescue Authority

Find Out More & Contact Us

Our website provides more information about us, what we do, where
we are located, latest news and much more.

www.ddfire.gov.uk

Alternatively, you can contact us at:

County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters
Belmont Business Park

Durham

DH1 1TW

Tel: 0845 305 8383

Fax: 0191 3866353

Minicom: 0191 3847524

Email: ServiceHQ@ddfire.gov.uk

HQ Opening Times:
8.30am-5.00pm Monday -Thursday
8.30am-4.30pm Friday

If you would like this document in a different format,
use the contact details above to let us know.




	Agenda
	5 Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) 2015/16 to 2017/18 - Consultation:
	131114-SS-CT-SP-Item5-IRMP-App2


